
CITY OF WESTMINSTER REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING 
November 15, 2022 @ 6:00 PM 

Westminster Depot  
135 E Main Street 

 
Call to Order 
 
Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Certification of Quorum  
 
Swearing in Ms. Ruth May as Councilmember 
 
Public Comments: 
 
The floor is now open for public comments. Citizens of Westminster or others who have registered for time with the Clerk can now address 
Council for any matters on tonight’s agenda or other matters you wish to bring before the Council.  Speakers are allowed up to 3 minutes and 
possibly longer if that Speaker is recognized in advance as representing a larger group with similar concerns.  In order to preserve the decorum of 
this public meeting, and to allow adequate time for discussion among the elected membership of City Council, this will be the only time we will 
receive unsolicited comments tonight from the public. 
 
Special recognition of City Employee – Fire Department 
 
Comments from the Mayor and Council  
 
Routine Business  

1. Approval of the October 11, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes  
2. Approval of the October 27, 2022 Called Council & Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
3. Comments from the Interim Utilities Director 

a. Hall Road water line project 
b. C-Fund sidewalk project  
c. Other  

4. Comments from City Administrator 
a. 2019 EZGO Golf cart for the Police Department from Boone’s Buggies, LLC for 

$9,975.20 
b. Procurement of a new garbage truck, utilizing installment purchase agreement 

$350,000 
c. November 18, 2022 - Oconee County Chamber of Commerce 20 under 40 luncheon  

In honor of Officer Catlin Pope @ Blue Ridge Electric Coop 12:00-1:30- pm 
d. Other  

 
 
Old Business 

1. Second Reading of AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO THE LOAN AGREEMENT; 
CONSERFUND LOAN NUMBER 4-201-19 BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
WESTMINSTER AND THE SOUTH CAROLINA OFFICE OF REGULATORY 
STAFF ENTERED INTO ON THE 26TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2019, AMENDED 
NOVEMBER 19, 2019, MAY 31, 2019 AND JANUARY 17, 2022; AMENDED FROM 
$414,556.00 TO $369,947.23; AND HEREBY AMENDED TO NOVEMBER 15, 2022 



FOR CERTAIN WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS TO INCREASE OPERATING 
EFFICIENCIES; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

(City Council passed First Reading of this item on September 13, 2022. At the time, the 
amendment date was set at October 31, 2022. The date is modified to November 15, 
2022.  

In 2019, the City entered into a loan agreement with the South Carolina Office of 
Regulatory (SCORS) staff for the purchase and installation of six Variable Frequency 
Drive (VFD) pumps. The pumps are intended to increase the efficiency of the operations 
of the water system and save electricity. The final two VFD pumps were finally installed 
in August 2022 and are operational. SCORS is eager to close the loan agreement. The 
loan amortization schedule is provided as Exhibit A of the agreement. Repayment will 
take place at the rate of $40,114.92 per year for the next ten (10) years.  

The only terms expected changed between Amendment No. 3 and Amendment No. 4 is the 
closing date, referred to as “the completion of the construction phase to be June 30, 
2022,” which is amended to “the completion of the construction phase to be November 
15, 2022.” 

Staff recommends approval.) 

New Business 

2. Consideration of UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, RURAL 
DEVELOPMENT LEGAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (City of Westminster, South 
Carolina – Water Infrastructure System Improvements) 
 

(The USDA-RD issued a Letter of Conditions (LOC) for a loan of $8,705,000 for water 
system improvements to the City. City Council approved a Resolution to accept the loan 
at its September 13, 2022 Regular Meeting. A requirement of USDA-RD loan is review 
and approval of a Legal Services Agreement by the City Council. The agreement details 
the legal expenses anticipated for the execution of the USDA-RD loan. These expenses 
are included in the $8,705,000 loan.  

 
Staff recommends approval.)  
 

3. Consideration of RESOLUTION NO.11-15-2022-01; A RESOLUTION ADOPTING 
THE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN AND EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 
GUIDELINES; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO  

(The purpose of this plan is to establish policies and procedures which in the event of a 
man-made or natural disaster will allow for the most effective utilization of resources within 
the City and minimize the loss of life and/or injury or loss of property. The plan was last 
adopted in February of 2022. Historically, the plan was reviewed and re-adopted annually. 
Going forward, the plan will continue to be reviewed by City staff regularly, no less than 
annually, and will be adopted every three years.  

Staff recommends approval.)  
 



4. Consideration of RESOLUTION NO.11-15-2022-02; A RESOLUTION COMMITTING 
TO CELEBRATE AND PROMOTE ARBOR DAY AND ITS IMPORTANCE IN THE 
CITY OF WESTMINSTER 
 

(In 1934, the South Carolina General Assembly picked the first Friday in December as 
Arbor Day in South Carolina because December is the most ideal time for planting trees in 
the Palmetto State as trees are dormant and it tends to be rainy; both are factors in reducing 
the shock of transplanting trees.  

In 2008, the City Council adopted an ordinance to establish policies, regulations, and 
standards for the management of public trees within the City limits. From Section 95.03 
OBJECTIVES of the Westminster municipal code: 

“The objectives of public tree management shall be to maximize the functional benefits of 
trees while minimizing the costs of management. The objectives of this chapter shall be as 
listed below: 

(A)Maintain the city's tree canopy cover at or above its current level. 
(B)Maintain and improve community character. 
(C)Enhance the aesthetic appearance of the landscape. 
(D)Provide direction and support to tree management.” 

 
Further, Section 95.09 TREE CITY U.S.A. requires: 

“(A) The City of Westminster shall maintain Tree City U.S.A. status and submit an 
application for this designation each year by December 15 to the South Carolina Forestry 
Commission and the National Arbor Day Foundation. 

(B)To maintain eligibility for this program, the city shall meet the following criteria: 
(1)Hold an annual Arbor Day Celebration on or around Arbor Day in South 

Carolina, the first Friday in December. An Arbor Day Proclamation shall be created and 
included as part of the celebration; 

(2)Have a tree ordinance. The tree ordinance shall be reviewed, and revised if 
necessary, at least once every two years; 

(3)Have an active Tree Board, appointed by the Mayor and Council, responsible for 
advising the Town on tree-related matters; and 

(4)Spend at least $2 per capita on public tree management, including planning, 
education, tree establishment, maintenance, protection, and removal, and any and all 
other maintenance or management activities.” 

An Arbor Day Celebration is scheduled for Friday, December 2, 2022 at 10:00 am at the 
City Hall parking lot. Mayor Ramey will lead a group from Foothills Christian School in the 
celebration by planting a tree in a landscape area of the parking lot. The tree is an American 
hornbeam, Carpinus caroliniana, https://www.thespruce.com/american-hornbeam-3269298   

 Staff recommends approval.) 
 

5. Consideration of Bid Award for Computers funded by a grant from the South Carolina 
Department of Public Safety Office of Highway Safety and Justice Programs through 
the Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding. 
 
(On October 14, 2022, Westminster Police Department was awarded $18,990 from the South 
Carolina Department of Public Safety Office of Highway Safety and Justice Programs 
through the Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding.  The grant will benefit the 
Westminster Police Department by funding the purchase of new In-Car computers.  This 

https://www.thespruce.com/american-hornbeam-3269298


grant funds the continued use of technology to enhance the modernization and policing 
methods of the Westminster Police Department.   
While the City Procurement Ordinance adopted by City Council on October 11, 2022 does 
not require City Council authorization, the grant award may require City Council approval.  
 
 Preferred Communications $25,488.91 

Dell Technologies  $18,889.21 
Howard Technology Solutions $17,916.12 

 
Staff recommends award to Dell Technologies for $18,889.21.) 
 

5. Consideration of Assignment and Assumption Agreement from Total Environmental 
Solutions, Inc., to CSWR-South Carolina Utility Operating Company, LLC.   

(Total Environmental Solutions, Inc., commonly referred to as TESI, entered into a 
purchase water agreement with the City in August 2005 for the Foxwood Hills Water 
System. The City maintains a six-inch master meter at the interconnection point to meter 
the gallons of water sold. From November 2019 thru November 2022 TESI used over 
208,000,000 gallons of water, generating approximately $735,000,000 of revenue.  

On February 4, 2021 CSWR-South Carolina Utility Operating Company, LLC entered 
into a purchase agreement with TESI for the sale of the utility system. Attorneys 
representing both TESI and CSWR request Council approve the Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement. The city attorney has reviewed the attached agreement and its 
exhibit. 

Staff recommends approval.)  

6. Discussion of naming a facility in honor of Councilman Yousef Mefleh 
 

7. Discussion of Public Relations Committee  

(At the October 11, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting, staff and Council initiated a 
discussion of future plans for the Public Relations Committee. Staff also discussed the 
future plans with members of the Public Relations Committee and look forward to 
guidance from the Council.   

Items which Council may choose to discuss (but not limited to): 
• What is the mission and scope of responsibilities? 
• What activities should the PR Committee undertake? 
• What is the level of funding appropriate for these activities? 
• How much staff involvement is expected from Council? 
• How much does Council wish to be involved? 
• Whom does Council wish to appoint? 
• What level of decision-making should the committee have for public 

spaces? 

Other considerations: property and casualty liability insurance, financial oversight and 
controls, fundraising for special purposes, schedule of meeting dates with minutes.  



Included are two documents from the past for Council review;2019-2020 Events Outline, 
Mission and Scope of Responsibilities of the Special Events Committee.  

Adjourn 



1 
 

October 11, 2022 
 
 

MINUTES 
WESTMINSTER CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Scheduled Meeting 
Tuesday, October 11, 2022 

 
 
The City Council of the City of Westminster met in a regular scheduled meeting on Tuesday, 
October 11, 2022 at 6:00 pm at the Westminster Fire Department with Mayor Brian Ramey 
presiding.  Those in attendance were: 
 
Brian Ramey   Dale Glymph  Daby Snipes   
Jimmy Powell   Audrey Reese  Adam Dunn    
  
   
City Administrator, Kevin Bronson 
City Clerk, Rebecca Overton 
Police Chief, Matt Patterson  
Fire Chief, Michael Smith 
City Attorney, Andrew Holliday 
Members of the public and press 
 
     Notice of the meeting and the agenda was posted on a window at the Fire Department and 
at westminstersc.org twenty-four hours prior to the meeting and all persons, organizations and 
local media requesting notification and the agenda were notified by email. 
 
Call to Order 
 

Mayor Ramey called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.  
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Mrs. Audrey Reese led the Council in the invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Certification of Quorum 
 
 Rebecca Overton certified a quorum. 
 

At this time Mayor Ramey welcomed Ruth May and informed those in attendance that 
she was running for the vacant Council seat.  

  
Public Comments 
 

Mr. Franklin Jones of James Street spoke about an open court case he has for meter 
tampering.  He stated concerns he had about not being allowed to attend his court 
proceedings.  

 
Jessica Glymph of the SC Bigfoot Festival spoke to Council about the upcoming Bigfoot 
Festival.  She stated that this would be the third festival and the first time it would be a 
two-day event.  Mrs. Glymph added that an 80’s Band would be performing and a 
parade was planned.  

 



2 
 

October 11, 2022 
 
 

   

Special Recognition of City Utility Employee – Electric Department  

Mayor Ramey recognized Cory Baker of the electric crew for his recent final training of 
journeyman lineman.  He congratulated Cory for this accomplishment and stated to 
Council that this training will expand his lineman abilities.  Mayor Ramey presented Mr. 
Baker with a certificate of recognition.    

Comments from the Mayor and Council 
 

Mrs. Reese thanked Council for passing the Civility Resolution.  She stated that 
supporting and maintaining civility was very important and that the Resolution would also 
serve as an attribute to the late Yousef Mefleh since he always supported kindness and 
civility.   
Mrs. Snipes thanked city employees for their service and dedication to keeping things 
flowing smoothly.  Mr. Dunn added that he was appreciative as well of the services and 
attitudes that employees provide.   
Mr. Glymph reminded everyone that the Christmas Parade is planned for Friday, 
December 2 at 6:00 pm and the theme is “West WhoVille.”  He also added that Music on 
Main would be October 29th as well as a Haunted House sponsored by the American 
Legion.  Mr. Glymph also noted that the Halloween event would likely be neighborhood 
trick or treat on Retreat Street.  
Mayor Ramey read a letter from the Foxwood Hills Property Association expressing 
sympathy for the passing of Mr. Yousef Mefleh.  Mayor Ramey asked Mr. Bronson about 
he credit card fee pass through and if that had been implemented.  Mr. Bronson 
informed Mayor Ramey that the QS1 software program was in the process of obtaining a 
new program with a different credit card payment vendor that would allow the pass 
through fees based on credit card regulations.  He added that the change over is still a 
few months away but as soon as it is available, the City will move forward with the credit 
card fee pass through policy.    

   

Old Business 

 
1. Second Reading of ORDINANCE NO. 2022-10-11-01; An Ordinance Authorizing and 

Establishing an Economic Development Incentive Program to encourage private 
investment in the incentive area of the City of Westminster, South Carolina; 
Authorizing and establishing a program to grant special property tax assessments to 
certain rehabilitated historic properties; and other matters related thereto. 

Mr. Bronson reminded Council that they had made several provisions to the 
Economic Development Incentive Ordinance as presented earlier in August.  The 
Ordinance now includes those revisions.   

Upon a motion by Mr. Dunn and seconded by Mrs. Reese, the motion to approve 
Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2022-10-11-01; An Ordinance Authorizing 
and Establishing an Economic Development Incentive Program to encourage 



3 
 

October 11, 2022 
 
 

private investment in the incentive area of the City of Westminster, South 
Carolina; Authorizing and establishing a program to grant special property tax 
assessments to certain rehabilitated historic properties; and other matters 
related thereto passed unanimously.   

 

 

 

 

 

2. Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2022-10-11-02; An Ordinance Approving the 
Execution and Delivery of a Pole Attachment License Agreement By and Between 
the City Of Westminster, South Carolina and Spectrum Southeast, LLC And Other 
Matters Related Thereto. 

Mr. Bronson reminded Council that Spectrum Southeast, LLC has requested the 
right to attach its communications equipment (aerial cables, wires and other 
facilities related thereto) to City-owned utility poles.  Mr. Bronson added that the 
City’s legal representative Pope Flynn negotiated the agreement, the term of the 
agreement is five (5) years and includes a cost of $21.00 per pole.   

Upon a motion by Mrs. Reese and seconded by Mrs. Snipes, the motion to 
approve Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2022-10-11-02; An Ordinance 
Approving the Execution and Delivery of a Pole Attachment License 
Agreement By and Between the City Of Westminster, South Carolina and 
Spectrum Southeast, LLC And Other Matters Related Thereto passed 
unanimously.  

  
 
 
 
 
    
 

 
3. Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2022-10-11-03; An Ordinance Deleting Certain 

Provisions of Title Iii, Chapter 35 Of The City Of Westminster Code Of Ordinances 
Pertaining to its Purchasing and Contracting Policy; Adding Title Iii, Chapter 38 Titled 
“Procurement”; and Other Matters Related Thereto. 
 

Member Motion Vote 
Ramey   Yes 
Glymph   Yes 
Powell  Yes 
Reese Second Yes 
Dunn Motion Yes 

Snipes  Yes 

Member Motion Vote 
Ramey   Yes 
Glymph   Yes 
Powell  Yes 
Reese Motion Yes 
Dunn  Yes 

Snipes Second Yes 



4 
 

October 11, 2022 
 
 

Mr. Bronson reminded Council that the Law Office of Pope Flynn had developed 
a revised Procurement Policy.  He stated to Council that this policy provides for a 
modern approach to procuring goods and services as needed by the City and it 
complies with South Carolina state law.    
 
Upon a motion by Mrs. Snipes and seconded by Mr. Glymph, the motion to 
approve Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2022-10-11-03; An Ordinance 
Deleting Certain Provisions of Title Iii, Chapter 35 Of The City Of 
Westminster Code Of Ordinances Pertaining to its Purchasing and 
Contracting Policy; Adding Title Iii, Chapter 38 Titled “Procurement”; and 
Other Matters Related Thereto passed unanimously. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

New Business 

4. Consideration of approval of Mutual Aid Agreement (between Clemson University 
Police department and Westminster Police Department)   
 

Mr. Bronson informed Council that entities with law enforcement officers within 
the state of South Carolina may adopt mutual aid agreements to allow for officers 
from one entity to provide law enforcement assistance to the other entity. The 
governing body of each entity must approve these agreements.  
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Dunn and seconded by Mr. Glymph, the motion to 
approve a Mutual Aid Agreement between Clemson University Police 
Department and Westminster Police Department passed unanimously.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5. Consideration of Proposals Downtown Master Planning Services 

 

Member Motion Vote 
Ramey   Yes 
Glymph Second  Yes 
Powell  Yes 
Reese  Yes 
Dunn  Yes 

Snipes Motion Yes 

Member Motion Vote 
Ramey   Yes 
Glymph Second  Yes 
Powell  Yes 
Reese  Yes 
Dunn Motion Yes 

Snipes  Yes 



5 
 

October 11, 2022 
 
 

Mr. Bronson informed Council that The Appalachian Regional Commission 
(ARC) awarded the City a $32,000 grant requiring a City match of $32,000 to 
complete a Downtown Master Plan.   

 
Mr. Bronson stated to Council that Four (4) proposals were submitted by the 
deadline provided in the Request for Proposals. He added that One (1) proposal 
did not meet the minimum submission qualifications.  Mr. Bronson stated that all 
three proposals offer a six month timeline. He stated that two of the proposals 
offer the same price yet have different caveats to the services provided. He 
suggested that any of the three proposals will create a good downtown master 
plan.  The firms and bid proposals were: 

 
Bolton & Menk / Studio Main / Downtown Strategies  $64,000 
Boudreaux / The Landplan Group South / Fred Delk $64,000  
SeamonWhite / Studio Main / DP3 Architects  $37,000-$50,000 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Dunn and seconded by Mr. Glymph, the motion to award 
the bid proposal for a Downtown Master Plan to Bolton & Menk/Studio 
Main/Dowtown Strategies in the amount of $64,000 passed unanimously.   

 
6. Consider creation and appointment of the Planning Advisory Committee   

 
Mr. Bronson again reminded Council that The City of Westminster was recently 
awarded a grant from the Appalachian Regional Commission (ARC) to develop a 
Downtown Master Plan. He added that the grant award included utilizing a 
Planning Advisory Committee. Mr. Bronson stated that this Committee is 
intended to provide general guidance to the planning consultant and to be 
available to provide input on draft iterations as the plan is developed.  He added 
that eight to twelve members from the community is ideal and that the time 
commitment is about 16 hours total over the next 5-7 months, with most 
meetings in the evenings. 
 
Mayor Ramey added that he felt like the Committee needed to be a mixture of 
business owners and residents of the area.  Mr. Bronson added that at least one 
Council member should also be on the Committee.   
 
After discussion and suggestions the following names were recommended as 
members of the Planning Advisory Committee: 
Audrey Reese   Betty Johnson   Suzette Snedigar 
Daby Snips   Matt Patterson 
Lacey Moore   Dave McCutcheon 
Jerry Smith   James McDowell 
Chester Lee   Sandra Powell 
Joe Mullett   Zack Sahrpe 



6 
 

October 11, 2022 
 
 

 
  

7. Consideration to approve Memorandum of Agreement For the Detention of Juveniles  
(between the South Carolina Department of Juvenile Justice and Westminster)  
 

Mr. Bronson informed Council that Juveniles arrested by law enforcement must 
be detained separately from adults. He added that this agreement with the South 
Carolina Department of Juvenile Justice provides for that detention for juveniles 
arrested by the Westminster Police Department. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Dunn and seconded by Mr. Glymph the motion to approve 
the Memorandum of Agreement for the Dentention of Juveniles between 
the South Carolina Department of Juvenile Justice and the City of 
Westminster passed unanimously.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Routine Business 

1. Approval of the September 13, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes  

Mayor Ramey noted the following changes/additions to the minutes: item #11 
add “with a yearly payment of $352,032.00, item #12 add “these bids are for the 
first 100 homes only”, and item #15 add “a Resolution was included in the 
OJRSA nomination.” 

Upon a motion by Mrs. Reese and seconded by Mr. Dunn, the motion to 
approve the September 13, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes with changes 
passed unanimously.    

 

 

 

 

 

Member Motion Vote 
Ramey   Yes 
Glymph Second  Yes 
Powell  Yes 
Reese  Yes 
Dunn Motion Yes 

Snipes  Yes 

Member Motion Vote 
Ramey   Yes 
Glymph  Yes 
Powell  Yes 
Reese Motion Yes 
Dunn Second Yes 

Snipes  Yes 



7 
 

October 11, 2022 
 
 

2. Comments from City Administrator  
 

Mr. Bronson informed Council that as part of the USDA Loan process, 
encroachment permits were being obtained.  He also added that he had asked 
the County to waive the fees associated with those permits.   
 
Mr. Bronson informed Council that he was in receipt of a request from Reggie 
Dion for reimbursement for Band expenses.  Mr. Bronson reminded Council that 
they had previously awarded $2250 to Downtown Main Street but since they do 
not have a non-profit tax status, those funds were not awarded.  Mr. Bronson 
suggested using the unused awarded funds to reimburse Mr. Dion.  Council was 
in agreement with this request.     
 
Mr. Bronson also informed Council that he is planning to put discussion of the PR 
Committee on the agenda for November.  He added that the Council should 
decide what they want the PR Committee to do and be responsible for.   
 

Executive Session 

Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contractual arrangements and proposed sale or 
purchase of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice relates to a pending, 
threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client privilege, 
settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary situations 
involving the assertion against the agency of a claim. 

a) Receipt of legal advice regarding procurement matters 

Upon a motion by Mrs. Reese and seconded by Mr. Powell, the motion to enter into 
executive session for the purpose of receipt of legal advice regarding 
procurement matters passed unanimously. 

Upon a motion by Mayor Ramey and seconded by Mrs. Reese, the motion to exit 
executive session passed unanimously.  

Adjourn 

Upon a motion by Mayor Ramey and seconded by Mr. Powell, the motion to adjourn the 
meeting at 8:20 pm passed unanimously. 

(Minutes submitted by Rebecca Overton) 

__________________________________   _____________________ 

Mayor Brian Ramey              Date 

 



1 
 

October 27, 2022 
 
 

MINUTES 
WESTMINSTER PLANNING COMMISSION/ 

WESTMINSTER CITY COUNCIL 
Called Meeting 

Thursday, October 27, 2022 
 

 
The City Council of the City of Westminster and the Westminster City Planning Commission met 
in a joint called meeting on Thursday, October 27, 2022 at 4:00 pm at the Westminster Fire 
Department with Mayor Brian Ramey presiding.  Those in attendance were: 
 
Brian Ramey    Dale Glymph   Larry Dellinger   
Jimmy Powell    Daby Snipes    Adam Dunn     
Sandra Powell     
   
City Administrator, Kevin Bronson 
City Clerk, Rebecca Overton 
Spencer Wetmore, Wetmore Law Firm 
Ruth May, Council Candidate  
 
     Notice of the meeting and the agenda was posted on a window at the Fire Department and 
at westminstersc.org twenty-four hours prior to the meeting and all persons, organizations and 
local media requesting notification and the agenda were notified by email. 
 
Call to Order 
 

Mayor Ramey called the meeting to order at 4:00 pm.  
 
New Business 

1. Discussion on Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance led by the Wetmore Law Firm  
 

Mr. Bronson reminded everyone that Council and the Planning Commission had 
met back in January with the Wetmore Law Firm.  He stated that Council along 
with the Planning Commission had given feedback regarding what direction they 
wanted to take to improve the Zoning Ordinance and additions to the Ordinance 
in order to be prepared for growth.   
 
Spencer Wetmore led Council and the Planning Commission in a discussion 
relating to Residential District and uses, creation of additional Residential 
districts, and various other changes to the Ordinance to allow for growth.  
 
A copy of the Draft Version is attached to these minutes. 
   

Adjourn 

Upon a motion by Mr. Ramey and seconded by Mr. Glymph, the motion to adjourn the 
meeting at 6:42 pm passed unanimously. 



2 
 

October 27, 2022 
 
 

(Minutes submitted by Rebecca Overton) 

 

__________________________________   _____________________ 

Mayor Brian Ramey              Date 

 











































































































































































































































































All sales final on electrical parts. All used golf carts are sold as it no warranty. Trojan Battery 
Warranty is 24 months Continental Battery Warranty is 1 year. Battery Warranty will be voided 
due to lack of water, improper charging, a lose or burnt connection, or any other form of lack of 
maintenance.  ** 3% Card Processing fee addded to all card purchases**

Boone's Buggies LLC

17049 S Highway 11
Fair Play, SC  29643 US
boonesbuggiessc@gmail.com

Estimate
ADDRESS

Westminster Police 
Department
106 E Windsor St Ste A,
Westminster, South Carolina
29693 US

ESTIMATE # 1132
DATE 10/13/2022

  

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

2019 EZGO Valor (Gas) 1 10,500.00 10,500.00T

Cart Trade In 1 -1,600.00 -1,600.00

EZGO TXT Drop Spindle Lift Kit 1 380.00 380.00T

23x10x14 Carlisle A/T Tire
trie trade factored in

4 10.00 40.00T

 

SUBTOTAL 9,320.00
TAX (6%) 655.20
TOTAL $9,975.20

Accepted By Accepted Date













49126800 v2 

 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
 RURAL DEVELOPMENT 
 LEGAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(City of Westminster, South Carolina – Water Infrastructure System Improvements) 
 
 This agreement made on this ___ day of November, 2022, between the City of Westminster, 
South Carolina (the “City”) and Andrew K. Holliday, Esq. of Derrick, Ritter, Williams & Morris, 
P.A., (the “Attorney”): 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is a municipality of the State of South Carolina and a body corporate 
and politic; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Attorney agrees to perform all necessary and customary legal services 
necessary for certain improvements to the City’s water system (the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project costs of the Project will be defrayed by a $8,705,000 loan from the 
United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Development (“Rural Development”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, such loan will be evidenced by combined utility system revenue bond of the 
City; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Attorney will perform such services as are necessary to accomplish the 
above recited objectives including, but not limited to, the following: 
 
 1. Employ the services of a recognized bond counsel firm to prepare the necessary 
bonds and bond transcripts and render an unqualified opinion on the bond issues. The name and 
address of the bond counsel firm is stated in this Legal Services Agreement. The fees for employing 
bond counsel are included in the compensation section of this Agreement. 
 
 2. Issue a certification as to any judgments and/or litigation pending or outstanding 
against the City.  This will include an opinion on the effect that such litigation might have on the 
bond issue. Two copies will be provided. 
 
 3. Assist the City with the acquisition of necessary properties, rights-of-way, and 
easements for the Projects. 
 
 4. Issue preliminary title opinions on the properties owned or to be acquired by the 
City utilizing Form RD 1927-9, “Preliminary Title Opinion.”  This opinion will include all 
properties that will be a part of the facilities securing the loan. Two copies will be provided. 
 
 5. Issue final title opinions on the properties described in #4 above in letter form. 
 
 6. Complete and have the City execute Form RD 442-21, “Right-of-Way.” Two copies 
will be provided. 
 
 7. Complete and execute Form RD 442-22, “Opinion of Counsel Relative to Rights-



49126800 v2 
 2 

of-Way.” Two copies will be provided. 
 
 8. Cooperate with bond counsel and Rural Development in assisting the City with the 
adoption of the bond ordinances and the closing of the bond issues. 
 
 9. Items #2, 4, 6, and 7 above are to be completed prior to Rural Development issuing 
loan closing instructions and a commitment for construction to begin under interim financing and 
again (except item #5 instead of #4) on the day the bond issue is closed. 
 
 10. Item #2 above is also to be completed prior to each advance of loan funds on the 
bond issues. 
 
 11. Assist bond counsel and the City with meeting the local lender’s requirements for 
interim financing. 
 
 12. Review and approve construction contracts. 
 
 13. Attorney’s fees relating to any litigation or condemnation proceedings in connection 
with the Project will be paid by the City to the Attorney in accordance with a separate agreement.  
Any of such fees paid from Rural Development loan funds must receive prior concurrence of the 
City and Rural Development. 
 
 The name and address of Counsel to the City is: 
 
  Andrew K. Holliday, Esq. 
  Derrick, Ritter, Williams & Morris, P.A. 
  P.O. Box 795 
  Seneca, SC  29679 
 
    
 The name and address of employed bond counsel firm is: 
 
  Burr & Forman LLP 
  Attention: Michael W. Burns, Esq. 
  104 South Main Street, Suite 700 
  Post Office Box 447 
  Greenville, South Carolina  29601 (29602) 



49126800 v2 
 3 

COMPENSATION 
 
 The City will pay to the Attorney for professional services rendered in accordance herewith, 
fees as follows: 
 
 A.  $40,000 plus not exceeding $500.00 for expenses to Andrew K. Holliday, Esq. of 
Derrick, Ritter, Williams & Morris, P.A.; 
 
 B.  $20,000.00 plus not exceeding $500.00 in expenses incurred to Burr & Forman 
LLP in connection with the Interim Financing (Bond Anticipation Note); and 
 
 C. $45,000.00 plus not exceeding $500.00 for expenses incurred to Burr & Forman 
LLP in connection with the Combined Utility System Revenue Bond to be purchased by Rural 
Developmen (the “RD Loan”). 
    
 Such fees and expenses are payable in the following manner and at the following times: 
 
Derrick, Ritter, Williams   Closing of Interim Financing  25% of fee,   
& Morris, P.A.        plus expenses 
  
   Rural Development Loan Closing 65% of fee, 
     plus expenses 
    
   Completion of Project 10% of fee, 
     plus expenses 
 
Burr & Forman LLP: Closing of Interim Financing $20,000.00,  
     plus expenses 
 
   Rural Development Loan Closing 90% of fee for RD 

Loan, 
     plus expenses 
    
   Completion of Project 10% of fee for RD  
     Loan,    
     plus expenses 
 
 
    City of Westminster, South Carolina 
 
    By:_______________________________ 
          City Administrator 
Attorney 
__________________________________________ 
Andrew K. Holliday, Esq. 
Derrick, Ritter, Williams & Morris, P.A. 



RESOLUTION NO. 11-15-2022-01 
 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN AND 
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS GUIDELINES; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Westminster, South Carolina (the “City”) is a legally constituted 
municipal corporation incorporated by Act No. 744 of the Acts and Joint Resolutions of the 
General Assembly of the State of South Carolina for the year 1875, and maintains a combined 
utility system (the “System”); and  
 

 WHEREAS, the City recognizes the threat natural hazards pose to people and property; 
and 

 
 WHEREAS, undertaking hazard mitigation actions before disasters occur will reduce the 

potential for harm to people and property and save taxpayer dollars; and 
  

 WHEREAS, an adopted all hazards mitigation plan is required as a condition of future 
grant funding of mitigation projects; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City participated jointly in the planning process with the other units of  

Government in Oconee County and Anderson County to prepare an all hazards mitigation plan; 
and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City is aware that revision and updating of the plan is critical for active 

and effective hazard mitigation and that city of Westminster will monitor and record hazard related 
data and events that can be used to update the all-natural hazards mitigation plan. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Westminster (the “Council”), the governing body of the City, in a meeting duly assembled: 
 

 Hereby adopts the update to the Emergency Operations Plan & Emergency Preparedness 
Guidelines – amended February 8, 2022, the Mitigation Plan, in its entirety as an official plan and 
will undertake annual recording of hazard events, their impact duration and cost.  
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 



DONE AND ADOPTED IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, this 15th day of November 
2022. 
 

 
 
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 
      _________________________________________ 

Brian Ramey, Mayor 
 
 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 
 
 
     
Rebecca Overton, City Clerk 
 
 
 



 1 

City of Westminster 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Emergency Operations Disaster Plan 
& 

Emergency Preparedness Guidelines  
Amended November 15, 2022 

 
 
 
This book contains a plan of local emergency preparedness for the City of 
Westminster. It also contains the City’s Emergency Operations Disaster Plan.  
This book is not intended for or to be given to the public.  Department heads are 
to keep this with them in their office and/or vehicles, for reference.   
 
 
The Emergency Preparedness Guidelines have been formulated and published 
by the Westminster Fire Department for use by department heads, supervisors, 
and political officials. This plan will be reviewed annually by all staff of the 
City of Westminster, the plan will remain active for a period of 36 months from 
date of adoption.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revised 11/22 



 2 

 
Table of Contents 

    

Purpose------------------------------------------------------------------ pg 3 
 

Authority---------------------------------------------------------------- pg 3 
 

Key Elements of Emergency Management------------------------ pg 3 
 

Emergency Preparedness 
Before, During, and After an Emergency--------------------------- pg 4 
 

Chain of Command---------------------------------------------------- pg 5 
 

Emergency Operations Center (EOC) ------------------------------ pg 5-6 
 

Readiness Levels------------------------------------------------------- pg 6-7 
 

Receiving State and Federal Assistance----------------------------- pg 8 
 

Emergency Shelters---------------------------------------------------- pg 8 
 

EOC Control and Succession----------------------------------------- pg 9 
 

EOC and Unified Command Flow Chart  
(Large/Multiple Incidents)-------------------------------------------- pg 10 
 

Incident Command & Support Examples--------------------------- pg 11 
 

Departments Emergency Task Assignments----------------------- pg 12-15 
 

Department responders telephone, equipment, vehicles,  
specialized equipment listing----------------------------------------- pg 
 
City Telephone Numbers---------------------------------------------- pg 
 

Agency Telephone Numbers------------------------------------------ pg 
 

County Schools Telephone Numbers-------------------------------- pg 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

 
 
Purpose  
 
The purpose of this plan is to establish policies and procedures, which in the event of a man 
made or natural disaster will allow for the most effective utilization of resources within the 
City of Westminster and minimize the loss of life and/or injury or loss of property. 
 
Authority 
 
This plan is adopted and authorized by the City Council, City of Westminster under 
Resolution 11-15-2022-01; Resolution dated 11-15-2022 
 
In compliance with Oconee County Ordinance No. 80-13. Dated December 22, 1980. 
 
Authorized Under South Carolina Act 223 of 1967, as amended and South Carolina Act 
Number 199, July 30, 1979 
 
Key Elements of Emergency Management 
 
All department heads and city officials are to be engaged in pre-disaster planning, proper 
management of the disaster, and post-disaster recovery.  The city’s emergency management 
system consists of the following elements: 
 
MITIGATION.  These are activities designed to avoid or prevent emergencies from 
occurring and to reduce the ill effects of those which are unavoidable.  This is the most 
effective, yet perhaps the least practiced element of emergency management. 
 
PREPAREDNESS. If an emergency cannot be avoided, then be prepared to cope with it.  
Planning and training are the essential elements of preparedness, as are having proper and 
adequate supplies, equipment, facilities, and personnel. 
 
RESPONSE. Speed, training and competency are the most essential elements of response.  
Getting to the scene of an emergency quickly and taking immediate, proper and decisive 
actions will eliminate or reduce the severity of the incident.  Such actions may include a 
warning, isolation, evacuation, suppression, rescue, treatment and, in extreme cases, 
withdrawal for safety reasons.  
 
RECOVERY. Recovery is the return of a situation to normal or to an improved state of 
being.  Recovery applies to both individuals and organization. It may include repairing, 
replacing, or rebuilding properties and possessions, regaining health and well being, state of 
mind, and re-establishing economic stability to both employees and the public. 
 
 
 
 



 4 

 
 
Emergency Preparedness Before the Disaster 
 
The following are preparatory and precautionary actions which should be taken before an 
emergency actually occurs: 

1. Update all disaster plans every third year. 
2. Identify potential and actual hazards within the City of Westminster. 
3. Plan, prepare, maintain and practice internal, departmental emergency operating 

procedures. 
4. Conduct training, education and exercise programs to test the capability of 

disaster response measures. 
5. Study procedures for alerting, notifying and mobilizing key officials and 

emergency response personnel. 
6. Establish mutual support agreements, as required, with local and county 

governments and contractors. 
7. Prepare plans for the “key Elements of Emergency management” for both the City 

by each department. 
8. Update roster of key department personnel. 
9. Review inventory and sources of supply for needed protection, equipment, food, 

water, and supplies. 
10. Prepare and conduct public information programs on disaster preparedness, to 

educate the public 
 
Emergency Preparedness During the Disaster 

1. Operations will center protecting life and property, health and welfare, mitigating 
the effects of the disaster, assessing damage and providing for recovery from the 
disaster’s effects. 

2. Furnish food, appropriate clothing, supplies, equipment, transportation, and 
facilities for emergency operations.  Establish provisions for both the city and 
outside emergency workers. 

3. Plan to rotate crisis workers to avoid excess fatigue.  Provide for having on-duty 
and off-duty shifts. Perform specific tasks, for which they are responsible, by 
appropriate departments. 

4. Remain calm, collected and cooperative. 
 
Emergency Preparedness After the Disaster 

1. Clean, repair, and replenish all supplies, equipment, and facilities. 
2. Restore law and order, repair damage to facilities, administer to the sick and 

injured, resettle the homeless, and restore the economy. 
3. Bring all involved departments and city officials together to critique the incident, 

to review and improve operating procedures, and to better prepare for the next 
one. 

 
 
 



 5 

 
 
Chain of Command 
 
The Safety Director/City Administrator is responsible for direction of the emergency 
operations within the City of Westminster. 
 
The Safety Director/City Administrator shall appoint one department head and one alternate 
department head to serve as EOC Commander. 
 
The Safety Director/City Administrator shall coordinate all departments, services and 
resources within the EOC. 
 
The Safety Director/City Administrator works as a liaison between activities of the EOC and 
the Mayor and City Council Members. 
 
The EOC Commander shall co-ordinate all emergency activities with City Department 
Heads. 
 
Each Department Head will co-ordinate activities of their respective departments.  
 
 
Emergency Operations Center (EOC) for the City 
 
LOCATION: Westminster Fire Department 
  216 Emergency Lane, Westminster, SC 
 
ACTIVATION: 

1. The EOC can be utilized, at any time , by any of the following city personnel, when 
needed: 

• City Safety Director  
• Fire Chief 
• Police Chief 
• Utility Director 
• Street Department Supervisor 

2. The EOC is to be activated, as described, during any Level Charlie or Delta readiness 
condition. 

3. The Westminster EOC is a backup EOC facility for Oconee County and can be 
utilized, at any time, at the request of the County E.P.D. 

 
RESPONSIBILITES: 

• Department heads and city officials shall be notified of activation and, if needed, shall 
respond to the EOC. 

2 When the EOC is fully activated, the above personnel shall be notified, as soon as 
possible. These persons shall report to the EOC. 



 6 

3. Each department head shall be responsible for maintaining records of their personnel 
and supplies 

4. Upon activation of the EOC, one individual from each department shall be assigned 
to monitor the radio and another person is assigned for each telephone line: 

• 647-3234 Police 
• 647-3235 Utilities 
• 647-3236 Fire 
• 647-3237 City Council and Street 
• 647-3238 County EOC 
• 647-3239 Fax Machine 

 
   
 
Readiness Levels 
Most emergency situations follow some recognizable period, preceding the incident, during 
which actions may be taken which would help achieve maximum readiness.  The Safety 
Director can establish a particular readiness level for the City of Westminster.  However, 
department heads have both the freedom and responsibility to establish a readiness level for 
their own department.  The following readiness levels will be used as a means of 
recognizing, modifying, and coordinating the City’s state of readiness. 
 
CONDITION ALPHA (NORMAL ALERT LEVEL) 
 
This is the normal readiness level which all departments will operate under when normal, 
daily emergency conditions have been anticipated, practiced, and planned for. 
Examples:   

1. Onset of normal seasonal weather conditions such as dry weather, rains, or during 
pleasant weather 

2. Potential for civil unrest. 
3. Potential for energy or utility emergency. 

Actions: 
1. Establish applicable emergency plans. 
2. Update personnel notification list. 
3. Check equipment and supplies, daily.  

 
CONDITION BRAVO (HEIGHTENED ALERT LEVEL) 
A term used to describe a more heightened alert condition which presents a greater threat 
than Condition Alpha, but does not present an immediate threat to life or property. 
Examples: 

1. Tornado Watch 
2. Flash Flood Watch 
3. Severe Weather Alert 
4. “Red Flag Alert” for burning conditions 
5. Civil unrest with an incident 

Actions: 
• Alert key personnel and citizens of the situation 



 7 

• Implement departmental plans & SOP’s 
• Prepare Emergency Operations Center for use. 

CONDITION CHARLIE 
 
This is a serious condition, which denotes that hazardous conditions are probable, or in fact, 
are already occurring in certain areas adjacent to or within the jurisdiction.  A high potential 
exist for property damage and/or loss of life. 
Examples: 

1. Tornado Warning (cycle activation of tornado siren) 
2. Flash Flood or Winter Storm Warning. 
3. Large scale power or water outage,, more than 8 hours. 
4. Civil disorder with large scale, localized violence. 
5. When international tension dictates that a local attack or terrorist event is 

eventual or probable. 
Actions: 

• Carry out department plans and SOP’s 
• Initiate call-up of additional personnel 
• Notify the members or partially mobilize the EOC 
• Cancel leave time. 

 
CONDITION DELTA (HIGHEST ALERT LEVEL) 
 
This signifies that hazardous conditions are imminent or are, in fact, occurring.  This 
condition indicates a great sense of danger and urgency which may result in a great loss of 
life. 
Examples: 

1. Tornado actually sighted, approaching city. 
2. Area Haz-Mat incident, requires a large evacuation. 
3. Mass casualties or severe life safety incidents. 
4. Massive fires, flooding, earthquakes or nuclear fallout. 

Actions: 
• Alert citizens; general call-in of off-duty personnel 
• Activate and fully staff the EOC. 
• Carry out departmental plans and SOP’s 
• Implement mitigation, response, & recovery plans. 

 
 
 
Receiving State and Federal Assistance 
 
Westminster, as a municipality, is not permitted to contact State and Federal agencies 
directly for assistance.  Assistance from State and Federal agencies can be requested only 
after all mutual-aid assistance and local resources have been utilized and additional 
assistance is still needed.  At that time, the first appropriate contact is the Oconee County 
Emergency Preparedness Director, Mr. Scott Krein, at 638-4200.  To contact this director 
after working hours, call the Oconee County sheriff dispatcher’s office at 638-4111. 



 8 

 
Department heads are charged with the responsibility for documenting completely all costs 
and expenditures in connection with emergency operations.  This is necessary to support a 
claim for State / Federal assistance, should it become available.  A careful record must be 
maintained of all regular time and overtime during which personnel and equipment are 
employed.  Obtain detailed receipts for all local purchases, including meals.  Keep a record 
of parts and supplies used, through city invoices.  All such records are subject to an in-depth 
audit; so completeness and accuracy are essential.  If it isn’t documented, it did not happen. 
 
Emergency Shelters Location 
 
City Shelters: 
 
Location: M.D. Cleveland Civic Center 
   Anderson Avenue @ College Street 
  Westminster, SC 
Facilities: Kitchen with sink (no stove) 
  Men & Women restrooms with showers 
 
Red Cross Evacuation Shelters: 
 
Locations: Westminster Elementary School 
  206 Hamilton Drive 
   Westminster, SC 
 
  Westminster Baptist Church 
  212 E. Windsor Street 
  Westminster, SC 
 
  First Baptist Church 
  426 West-Oak Hwy 
  Westminster, SC 
  
  Relax Inn Motel 
  100 West Windsor Street 
  Westminster, SC 
 
EOC Control and Succession 
 
Emergency field operations will normally be handled and mitigated by those departments and 
department heads that are responsible for controlling such emergencies. 
 
However, during some disasters, extraordinary and unusual incidents tax the entirety of the 
city government, requiring the coordination, planning, and decision-making of various inside 
and outside agencies.  In these cases, overall power, command and control must reside with 
one person within the EOC. 



 9 

 
The line of succession, direction and control of the person in charge of the EOC shall be as 
follows: 
 

1. City Administrator 
 
2. In the absence of the City Administrator, next in succession of authority for city 

emergency preparedness operations would be the Fire Chief or his delegate. 
 

3. In the absence of the Fire Chief, next in succession of authority for city 
emergency preparedness operations would be the Police Chief or his delegate 

 
4. In the absence of the Police Chief, the next in succession would be a designated 

Department Head or city employee, as determined by the City Administrator. 
 
The person who is assigned primary operational control of the EOC may call upon any 
department, supplier or agency for any means of support or assistance which he/she deems 
necessary to mitigate the emergency. 
 
During times of disaster, the person in charge of the EOC shall have complete and 
unquestioned decision making power and control. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

****  Incident Flow Chart on following page: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 10 

 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P.I.O. 

Liaison 

Dept. Heads, Clerk, Utilities, Mayor, 
Council  Attorney  and Staff 

Planning, Logistics, and Finance 
(below) should be here during EOC 

 

Field 
Incident 

Command
 

Safety 
 

Fire  
Operatio

 

EMS 
Operatio

 

Planni
ng 

Logisti
cs 

Finan
ce 

Staging 

Divisio
ns/Grou

 

Divisio
ns/Grou

 
 

Resourc
 

Sit-
 

Docume
 

Demobili
 

Technic
al 

 

Communicati
 

Medical 

Food 

Supplies 

Facilitie
 

Time 

Procurem
 

Work 
 

Costs 

Divisio
ns/Grou

 
 

Police 
Operatio

 
 

E.O.C. 
Command

er 



 11 

 
City of Westminster – Primary Incident Commander and Support Agencies 

 
Disaster Incident  IC Support   Assisting Agencies  
Examples 

 
Accidents, MVA w/ injuries  Fire Police, Street, Utilities EMS, Rescue, SCHP 
Aircraft Crash   Fire Police, Street, Utilities EMS, Rescue,SCHP,FAA, NTSB,ARC 
Bomb, Bomb threat, Explosives Police Fire   EPD,EMS,Rescue,Co. & State Law 
Building Collapse   Fire Police, Street, Utilities EPD,Special Res, EMS, Contractors 
Casualty, Mass   Fire Police   EPD,EMS,Coroner,Schools,Funeral H. 
Cave In, Trench, Confined Space Fire Utilities, Police  EPD,Special Resc, Rescue, EMS 
Civil Disturbance   Police    County and State Law Enforcement 
Electrical Power / Water Outage Utilities Fire, Police  EPD 
Explosion or bomb detonation Fire Police   EMS, SLED,EPD,ATF,ARC 
Fire (Structure / Personal Property) Fire Utilities, Police  Rescue, EMS,ARC 
Fire (Forest / Brush)  Fire Utilities, Police  Rescue, State Forestry 
Flammable, Toxic Liquid Spill Fire Police   Haz-mat, Rescue,DHEC,EMS, 
Flooding (street and residence) Fire Police, Utilities, Street State /County Public Works, ARC,EPD 
Gas Vapors / Leakage  Fire Police, Utilities, Street Haz-mat, Rescue, EMS, DHEC 
Hazardous Materials Spill, leak Fire Police, Utilities, Street Haz-mat, Rescue, EMS, DHEC,EPD 
Nuclear Materials Spill / leak  Fire Police, Utilities, Street EPD,DHEC,NRC,DOE,Rescue,EMS 
Pollution of Water Supply  Utilities Police, Fire  EPD,DHEC 
Railroad accident / derailment Fire Police, Utilities, Street EPD,CSX,Norfolk,EMS,SCHP,NTSB 
Snowstorms (heavy blizzard / ice) Street Utilities, Police  State / County Highways 
Terrorist Actions or Hostage  Police Fire   EPD,FBI,ATF,DHS,SLED 
Tornado (high wind damage)  Fire Utilities, Street, Police EPD,Contractors,ARC 
Water Supply failure / Sabotage Utilities Police   EPD 
 
 
 
 
ARC – American Red Cross 
ATF – Alcohol, Tobacco & Firearm 
EPD – Emergency preparedness Director 
DOE – Dept. of Energy 
FAA – Federal Aviation Admin. 
FBI – Federal Bureau of Investigation 
NTSB – National Transp. And Safety Board 
NRC – Nuclear Regulatory Comm. 
SCHP – SC Highway Patrol 
SLED – SC Law Enforcement Div. 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL ACTIVITIES AND  
EMERGENCY TASK ASSIGNEMENTS 

The following section is a listing of those task assignments for which each and every 
department is responsible, during a disaster.  These task assignments apply to practically all 
hazards and emergency situations.  The duties are not necessarily all-inclusive, but will 
involve some of the most urgent tasks which each department is responsible for 
accomplishing.  The exercise of individual judgment, initiative, common sense, awareness, 
urgency, cooperation and coordination is essential for accomplishing these emergency task 
assignments. 
 



 12 

The following department and agencies are responsible for developing, maintaining, and 
practicing their own internal emergency plans and operating procedures, to be confident of 
their capacity to carry out assigned tasks and responsibilities: 
 
 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
The City of Westminster operates under a Council / Administrator form of government.  In a 
disaster, difficult decisions which impact the City are often decided by City Council, as 
overseen by the Mayor. 
 
The Mayor and City Council assume ultimate responsibility for and to the employees and 
citizens of Westminster, for the state of emergency preparedness and for the capability of the 
City to cope with and recover from emergencies and disasters.  Other duties of the Mayor 
and Council include: 

• Calm and inform the populace of the situation and of public actions required, with the 
Public Information Officer. 

• Make emergency policy decisions governing the direction of the disaster situation. 
• Sign mutual-aid agreements with adjoining departments. 
• Authorize requests for aid from the State and Federal governments, as needed. 
• Support, empower, encourage emergency responders. 

 
SAFETY DIRECTOR 

The Safety Director informs the Mayor and the members of City Council that an existing or 
impending disaster has been verified and that the city’s Emergency Operations Center (EOC) 
will be activated. The Safety Director role will be filled by the City Administrator then the 
Fire Chief, then the Police Chief. 

• Activates the City EOC or City Hall, as necessary. 
• Takes charge of and coordinates all departments, services and resources within the 

EOC. 
• Receives and responds to reports from Incident Commander at the disaster scene. 
• Works with the P.I.O., Mayor and Council to coordinate all public information; to 

ensure that the news media is accurately informed of current situations and 
conditions. 

• Ensure that the Mayor and members of City Council are kept abreast of emergency 
operations. 

• Supervises the operation of city departments for the efficient performance of duties in 
the disaster area, by utilizing the respective department heads/managers. 

• Prepares, maintains and operates the city disaster plan, operational plans and EOC 
during an emergency. 

• Coordinates increased readiness actions and emergency preparedness training, 
through supervision and drills. 

 
 
 
 



 13 

 
CITY CLERK 

• Maintains a list of and contracts with emergency resources, contractors, and vendors, 
as requested and as needed by the various department heads. 

• Coordinates the maintenance of detailed time, resources, equipment and personnel 
records to support claims for State / Federal financial assistance. 

• Provides financial information, authorized and needed 
• Provides payment to employees, contractors, vendors and outside agencies, to help 

mitigate and respond to the emergency. 
 

PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER 
• Prepares pre-approved news release text that are easy, “fill in the blank” format, 

which may be reviewed by the Mayor and City Council, and released to the media. 
• Coordinates with other PIO’s, involved with the incident, in order to provide 

consistent information to the public. 
• Maintains a Liaison with the news media. 
• Establishes a news media briefing room. 
• Briefs the news media at regular, periodic intervals. 
• Controls the news media reports and photographers from interfering with emergency 

operations, assisted by the police as required. 
• Serves a central clearing house for media information. 
• Serves as the source through which media will gain information from and access to 

public officials, if required.  The Mayor will be the visible city head, when available. 
• Establishes procedures for the flow of information to the public in an emergency / 

disaster situation. 
• Prepares and maintains lists of newspapers, radio, and television stations, including 

the names and numbers of their key personnel and contact points. 
• Publicizes the telephone number(s) of the “Public Information Center” where the 

public may obtain official disaster updates and information. 
 

CITY ATTORNEY 
• Prepares pre-approved emergency ordinances for special actions to be taken, such as 

curfews, the restricting of alcohol, firearm, or gasoline sales; “State of Emergency”, 
etc. Planning, before an event occurs, lessens the time needed to pass emergency 
ordinances. 

• Meets with city officials to render legal advice. 
 

FIRE CHIEF 
• Assumes primary operational control of fire suppression, fire code enforcement, 

rescue, life safety, explosion, and haz-mat operations. 
• May fill role as Safety Director as needed during emergency. 
• Develops Emergency Action Guidelines and SOP’s for members within the fire 

department. 
• Ensures that the Incident Command procedures have been implemented. 



 14 

• Responds to the EOC and/or field command post, as conditions dictate. 
• Ensures that (2) two members of the Fire Department are stationed at the EOC, when 

operating. 
• Ensures that mutual aid agreements have been arranged with other jurisdictions, as 

necessary. 
• Assists in the initial damage assessment, including fatalities and injuries, and 

updating such assessments. 
 

POLICE CHIEF 
• Assumes primary operational control of law enforcement, traffic and crowd control, 

security of emergency, traffic and crowd control, security of emergency area, bomb 
threat or detonation, civil disorder, hostage or terrorist situations. 

• May fill role as Safety Director as needed during emergency. 
• Ensures that (2) two members of the Police Department are stationed at the EOC. 
• Responds to the EOC and/or field command post, as conditions dictate. 
• Exercises traffic and crowd control. 
• Secures the Emergency Scene. 
• Develops evacuation routes, methods, and plans. 
• Develops SOP’s for the Police Department. 
• Assists displaced/threatened citizens. 
• Arbitrates emergency related differences between landlords and tenants. 

 
 

UTILITY DIRECTOR 
• Provides for domestic, commercial, and emergency water supplies and sewage 

disposal. 
• Provides for uninterrupted supply of domestic, commercial, and emergency electrical 

generation. 
• Provides for the proper operation, maintenance and supply of fire hydrants and water 

supply systems. 
• Provides heavy equipment and operators, as needed. 
• Coordinates and contracts with local contractors to obtain additional equipment and 

operators. 
• Performs initial damage assessment and revisions, concentrating on streets, bridges 

and waterways. 
• Cleans streets: conducts snow, tree and debris removal. 

 
AMERICAN RED CROSS 

• Responds as requested to emergency situations in accordance with ARC directives. 
• Provides for traditional emergency needs of evacuees. 
• Coordinates activates of other volunteer agencies. 
• Provides rest areas for emergency workers. 

 



 15 

 
SUPERINTENDENT, SDOC 

• Conducts disaster training for both students and staff. 
• Furnishes school buses and drivers during evacuations. 
• Makes school facilities available as evacuation centers, aid stations as required. 
• Performs initial damage assessment in schools. 
• Prepares to evacuate children from schools. 
• Prepares to recall essential workers for school cafeteria, maintenance, and security 

workers. 
 
 

Primary Responders Telephone List 
 
 

 
1.  City Administrator  864-557-1935 

Kevin Bronson 
 

2. Fire Chief  864-557-0543 
Micheal Smith 
 

3. Police Chief  864-482-1883 
Matt Patterson 
 

4. Utility Director 864-280-2171 
Kevin Harbin 
 

5. City Clerk  864-247-0895 
Rebecca Overton 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 11-15-2022-02 
 

A RESOLUTION COMMITTING TO CELEBRATE AND PROMOTE ARBOR DAY AND 
ITS IMPORTANCE IN THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER 
 
  WHEREAS, the City of Westminster, South Carolina (the “City”) is a legally constituted 
municipal corporation incorporated by Act No. 744 of the Acts and Joint Resolutions of the 
General Assembly of the State of South Carolina for the year 1875, and maintains a combined 
utility system (the “System”); and  
 
  WHEREAS, Arbor Day was established in the 1800’s with an estimated one million trees 
planted on the very first Arbor Day; and 
 
  WHEREAS, in 1934 the South Carolina General Assembly picked the first Friday in 
December as Arbor Day in South Carolina because December is the most ideal time for planting 
trees in the Palmetto State as trees are dormant and it tends to be rainy; both are factors in reducing 
the shock of transplanting trees; and 
 
  WHEREAS, trees are needed in abundance to provide oxygen as they are one of the 
longest living organisms on earth; and 
 
  WHEREAS, planting trees diminish energy costs by serving as shade and windbreakers 
and trees increase property values and beautify the entire community; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council regards these enhancements as high priorities to enjoy and 
ensure for future generations; and 
 
  WHEREAS, in order to publicly affirm its commitment to Arbor Day and to embody its 
concern for the common good, the Council has determined to adopt this resolution. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council hereby 
proclaim the December 2, 2022 as Arbor Day in Westminster, SC. 
 
DONE AND ADOPTED IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, this 15th day of November 2022. 
 

 
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 
      _________________________________________ 

Brian Ramey, Mayor 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 
     
Rebecca Overton, City Clerk 



1 

ASSIGNM ENT AND  ASSUMPTION  AGREEM ENT 

For Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL 
SOLUTIONS, INC., (“Assignor”) hereby assigns to CSWR-SOUTH CAROLINA UTILITY 
OPERATING COMPANY, LLC a South Carolina limited liability company (“Assignee”) all of 
its right, title and interest in and to the Water Supply Agreement by and between Assignor and City 
of Westminster, South Carolina, as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Water Contract”). 

Any capitalized terms not expressly defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in that 
certain Agreement for Sale of Utility System dated February 4, 2021, by and between Assignor 
and Assignee, or its affiliate. (the “Agreement”).  

Assignee hereby assumes and agrees to perform all of the obligations of Assignor under 
the Water Contract, to the extent any such obligations accrue and are applicable to periods from 
and after the date hereof or which accrue prior to the date hereof for which Assignee received a 
credit on the closing statement of even date herewith between the parties (or pursuant to any post-
closing adjustment thereof). 

Assignor hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Assignee and its affiliates 
from and against any and all liabilities, claims, costs and expenses, including, without limitation, 
reasonable attorney’s fees, relating to acts or omissions accruing under the Water Contract prior to 
the date hereof.  Assignee hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Assignor and its 
affiliates from and against any and all liabilities, claims, costs and expenses, including, without 
limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees, relating to acts or omissions accruing under the Water 
Contract from and after the date hereof or with respect to obligations otherwise assumed by 
Assignee herein.  The Agreement contains provisions which govern actions for indemnity under 
any document or instrument executed pursuant to the Agreement to which reference is here made 
for all purposes.  The obligations of the parties hereunder shall survive the Closing.  

If any litigation between Assignor and Assignee arises out of the obligations of the parties 
under this Assignment and Assumption Agreement or concerning the meaning or interpretation of 
any provision contained herein, the losing party shall pay the prevailing party’s costs and expenses 
of such litigation including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

This Assignment and Assumption Agreement may be executed and delivered in any 
number of counterparts, each of which so executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original 
and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.  Signatures to this Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement transmitted by telecopy or electronic transmission (for example, through 
use of a Portable Document Format or “PDF” file, or electronic signature software, such as 
“DocuSign”) shall be valid and effective to bind the party so signing. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Assignor and Assignee have executed this Assignment as of 
November ____, 2022. 

ASSIGNOR: 

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS, 
INC., a Louisiana corporation 

 

  By:       
        Wayne Owens, CEO 

 
 

ASSIGNEE: 

CSWR-SOUTH CAROLINA UTILITY 
OPERATING COMPANY, LLC, a South Carolina 
limited liability company 

By:  Central States Water Resources, Inc., a Missouri 
corporation, its manager 

 

By:_       
Josiah M. Cox, President 

 

 

Agreed and Accepted by: 

CITY OF WESTMINSTER, a municipality and body politic 
Located in Oconee County, South Carolina 
 
By:______________________________ 
Name:____________________________ 
Title:_____________________________ 
 

 

  



A 

Exhibit A to Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
 

 



EXHIBIT A

























Mission and Scope of Responsibilities of the Special Events Committee 
 

Mission Statement: The appointed Special Events Committee will serve as an ad hoc group working on 
the City’s behalf to develop and support events that bring visitors to Westminster. It will work directly 
with organizers and interested individuals seeking to promote and hold events in Westminster and serve 
as a point of contact (POC) for City staff and officials. 

Responsibilities: 

• To serve as the go-between between City officials and staff, and those interested in hosting a special 
event that will draw visitors to Westminster.   

• To evaluate proposed events for purpose and to determine if these would be a good fit for 
Westminster. 

• To coordinate and plan the annual special events being conducted in Westminster 
 

Resources: 
 

• The City will set aside funding in the HTAX portion of the City’s ATAX/HTAX Fund for the Committee 
to use for expenses relating to coordinating events. 

• The City will allow use of its meeting spaces for Special Event Committee Meetings. The point of 
contact for staff support will be Rebecca Overton @ 864-647-3212pr roverton@westminstersc.org 

 
Appointed Committee Members (2-21-2017) 
 

• Katie Campbell.   
• Sarah Moore.       
• Tonya Watkins 
• Tracy Sanders.   



2019-2020 PR/Events Committee Planned Budget and Events Draft


Month Event Budget

August Warriorama $100

September 9/11 Recognition $100

Fall Decorating $150

October Bluegrass Jam $800

Car Show

Hanging of the Quilts

Bigfoot Festival $1,500

Boo on Main $300

November Christmas Decorations $800

Veteran’s Day Recognition $300

Small Business Saturday $150

December Christmas Parade/Tree Lighting $1,000

Tour of Homes $300

NYE Ball $1,200

January

February Sweetheart Dinner $300

March Birthday Bash $600

April

May Bluegrass Jam $600

June July 4th Prep $400

Extra Promotional Items $250

Popcorn Machine, Inflatable 
Bounce House, Inflatable 
Projector Screen/Projector

$1,150



Explanation of Events:


Warriorama — The committee will partner with WOHS and their organizations to help organize 
and promote the annual Meet the Warriors event. It is planned for August 16th. We will work 
with local churches and businesses to offer them free spaces at Warriorama to promote 
themselves and provide free handouts to the students. 


Fall Decorations — We will utilize the pumpkins that have been planted in the community 
pumpkin patch for decorating main street. We will also use decorations from the previous 
years, and anything new that we may need to spruce up the town for the fall activities.


9/11 Recognition — We plan on organizing a short memorial in remembrance of 9/11.


Bluegrass Jam — We will sponsor this event by providing portables for public restrooms, and 
advertising. 


Bigfoot Festival — We will sponsor this event  by providing additional advertising and portables 
for public restrooms.


Boo on Main — We will sponsor this event by providing candy.


Christmas Decorations — We will purchase additional decorations to go along with what we 
have left from previous years. We will also continue to purchase the Christmas tree from the 
boy scout’s tree farm as we have been doing.


Veteran’s Day — We plan on organizing a Veteran’s Day gratitude event to recognize local 
veterans.


Small Business Saturday — We will be applying to be an American Express Small Business 
Saturday sponsored city to help our local businesses promote themselves during the holiday 
shopping season.


Christmas Parade/Tree Lighting — We will secure a Santa for the parade, candy, refreshments 
for the tree lighting.


Tour of Homes — We will be available to partner with this event to provide additional help and 
advertising as needed.


New Years Eve Ball — This is a new event that we are looking to organize by partnering with 
other organizations within in the town to provide citizens a fun night to ring in the New Year.


Sweetheart Dinner — This is a new event that we are looking to organize by partnering with 
other organizations within the town to provide couples a night out in honor of Valentine’s Day. 
We will arrange a children’s activity night while the adults enjoy a nice dinner.


Birthday Bash — Westminster’s annual birthday celebration.


Bluegrass Jam — We will again provide advertising and portables, if needed, depending on the 
amount of available restrooms from businesses on Main Street.


July 4th — We plan to partner with the Sons of American Legion and sponsor their event. 




Extras: We also plan to purchase a few items that can be reused for multiple events in the city 
and that we can provide at other organizations events as well (popcorn machine, inflatable 
projector screen and projector, inflatable bounce house).


These are all estimates of what we will be doing throughout the year, but are available to 
partner with other events that may come up as needed. We are also planning to have a special 
spring meeting where organizations can come and let us know how we can help them promote 
their future events for 2020-2021.


Our meeting schedule is currently as follows, but is subject to change:

August 14th

September 4th

October 9th

November 13th

December 11th

January 8th

February 12th

March 11th

April 8th

May 13th

June 10th


All meetings are held at City Hall at 6:30. Other meetings may be scheduled depending on 
preparation for upcoming events. 


	November 15, 2022 AGENDA
	10112022 Meeting Minutes
	10272022 Called Meeting Minutes
	10272022 Called Meeting Minutes
	draft zoning ordinance

	Estimate_1132_from_Boones_Buggies_LLC
	4-201-19 Amend#4 emailed 11.9.22 for Signature
	Legal Services Agreement - City of Westminster - Rural Development Loan
	Resolution to adopt EOP and emergency preparedness guidelines Nov 2022
	EOP  2022-2023
	ARBOR DAY RESOLTUION
	CSWR TESI Assign and Assumption 2022
	EXHIBIT A to CSWR TESI Assignment  Assumption Agreement (Fox Wood Hills)
	Mission and Scope of Responsibilities of the Special Events Committee
	Mission and Scope of Responsibilities of the Special Events Committee

	2019-2020 Events Outline
	rev exp report
	0000_GL_381RevExpReport.rpt
	Revenue
	010 CITY GENERAL FUND
	100 ADMINISTRATION
	00400 PROPERTY TAXES
	40000 PROPERTY TAXES
	 

	40001 DELIQUENT TAXES
	 

	40002 VEHICLE TAXES
	 

	40003 HOMESTEAD EXPT. STATE
	 

	40004 MERCHANTS INVT. TAX
	 

	40005 WATERCRAFT TAX
	 


	00401 INTERGOVENMENTAL REV
	40100 C FUNDS
	 

	40102 AID TO SUBDIVISION
	 

	40104 OCONEE VOLUNTEER BONUS
	 

	40105 TRANSPORTATION NETWORK ACT
	 

	40106 C FUNDS - SIDEWALKS
	 

	40107 C FUNDS - ROADWAY RESURFACING
	 


	00402 LICENSE, PERMITS, & FEES
	40200 BUSINESS LICENSE
	 

	40202 TELECOM. TAX MASC
	 

	40203 BROKER TAX MASC
	 

	40204 MANUFACTURERS TAX
	 

	40205 INSURANCE TAX
	 

	40210 GARBAGE
	 

	40214  CELL TOWER RENT
	 

	40215 FACILITY RENTAL
	 

	40216 FOIA REQUEST FEES
	 


	00404 PYMT IN LIEU OF TAX & FRAN FEE
	40400 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX
	 

	40401 FRANCHISE FEES
	 

	40402 WUD FRANCISE FEE
	 


	00405 INTEREST INCOME
	40500 INTEREST INCOME
	 


	00406 GRANT INCOME
	40602 STATE GRANTS
	 


	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40700 SERVICE CHARGES
	 

	40701 PROCEEDS FROM BORROWING
	 

	40703 SALE OF EQUIP/MATERIAL/SCRAP
	 

	40707 MISCELLANEOUS REV
	 

	40708 INTERFUND TRANSFER
	 

	40709 SKATEBOARD PARK
	 

	40719 CAPITAL LEASE PROCEEDS
	 

	40720 SALE OF PROPERTY (EASEMENTS)
	 

	40721 NON GOVERNMENTAL GRANTS
	 

	40734 COURT ORDERED RESTITUTION
	 

	40735 INSURANCE PAID CLAIMS
	 

	40736 GHS FACILITY REIMBURSEMENT
	 

	40737 REFUNDS/REIMBURSEMENTS
	 

	40745 OLD VOIDED CHECKS
	 



	200 FIRE DEPARTMENT
	00401 INTERGOVENMENTAL REV
	40101 COUNTY ALLOCATION
	 


	00405 INTEREST INCOME
	40500 INTEREST INCOME
	 


	00406 GRANT INCOME
	40601 SC MUNI TRUST
	 

	40602 STATE GRANTS
	 


	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40703 SALE OF EQUIP/MATERIAL/SCRAP
	 

	40705 FD TRAINING FUND
	 

	40706 FD DRINK MACHINE FUND
	 

	40707 MISCELLANEOUS REV
	 

	40716 FIRE PREVENTION
	 

	40717 FIRE DEPARTMENT
	 

	40735 INSURANCE PAID CLAIMS
	 

	40737 REFUNDS/REIMBURSEMENTS
	 



	296 NO DESCRIPTION FOUND
	00404 PYMT IN LIEU OF TAX & FRAN FEE
	40402 WUD FRANCISE FEE
	 



	300 POLICE
	00403 FINES & FORFEITURES
	40300 POLICE FINES
	 

	40302 DRUG SEIZURES
	 


	00405 INTEREST INCOME
	40500 INTEREST INCOME
	 


	00406 GRANT INCOME
	40601 SC MUNI TRUST
	 

	40602 STATE GRANTS
	 

	40603 MISC GRANTS
	 


	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40702 DONATIONS
	 

	40703 SALE OF EQUIP/MATERIAL/SCRAP
	 

	40704 POLICE FUND
	 

	40737 REFUNDS/REIMBURSEMENTS
	 



	400 RECREATION
	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40745 OLD VOIDED CHECKS
	 



	500 CODES
	00402 LICENSE, PERMITS, & FEES
	40211 SIGN PERMIT FEES
	 

	40212 ZONING HEARINGS
	 


	00403 FINES & FORFEITURES
	40301 CODE ENFORCEMENT
	 



	600 PUBLIC WORKS
	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40703 SALE OF EQUIP/MATERIAL/SCRAP
	 



	700 NON DEPARTMENTAL
	00405 INTEREST INCOME
	40500 INTEREST INCOME
	 


	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40707 MISCELLANEOUS REV
	 

	40728 FUND BALANCE
	 

	40730 HTAX TRANSFER
	 

	40742 CAPITAL LEASE PURCHASE REVENUE
	 

	40744 ARC GRANT
	 




	020 UTILITY DEPT. GENERAL FUND
	150 UTILITY ADMINISTRATION
	00405 INTEREST INCOME
	40500 INTEREST INCOME
	 


	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40700 SERVICE CHARGES
	 

	40701 PROCEEDS FROM BORROWING
	 

	40707 MISCELLANEOUS REV
	 

	40708 INTERFUND TRANSFER
	 

	40710 PENALTIES
	 

	40712 DEBT SET OFF FEES
	 

	40713 PMPA ECONOMIC DEV.
	 

	40714 GARBAGE FEES
	 

	40719 CAPITAL LEASE PROCEEDS
	 

	40723 AMI FEES
	 

	40734 COURT ORDERED RESTITUTION
	 

	40735 INSURANCE PAID CLAIMS
	 

	40737 REFUNDS/REIMBURSEMENTS
	 


	00412 OTHER REVENUE
	41200 GRANTS
	 



	250 ELECTRIC
	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40703 SALE OF EQUIP/MATERIAL/SCRAP
	 

	40707 MISCELLANEOUS REV
	 

	40711 POLE RENTAL FEES
	 

	40733 TRANSFER FROM HOSPITALITY FUND
	 

	40735 INSURANCE PAID CLAIMS
	 

	40737 REFUNDS/REIMBURSEMENTS
	 


	00408 ELECTRIC
	40800 COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC
	 

	40801 RESIDENTIAL ELECTRIC
	 

	40802 SC SALES TAX
	 

	40803 COMMERCIAL ELE NTX
	 

	40804 TEMP POWER/UNDERGRND PW
	 



	350 WATER
	00406 GRANT INCOME
	40601 SC MUNI TRUST
	 


	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40703 SALE OF EQUIP/MATERIAL/SCRAP
	 

	40707 MISCELLANEOUS REV
	 

	40715 ELEVATED TANK MAINTENANCE
	 

	40737 REFUNDS/REIMBURSEMENTS
	 

	40743 DR. JOHNS RIA PROJECT
	 


	00409 WATER
	40900 WATER SALES
	 

	40901 WATER TAPS
	 

	40902 DHEC
	 


	00411 PROJECT OPERATIONS
	41100 WATER LINE EXTENSION
	 



	400 RECREATION
	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40745 OLD VOIDED CHECKS
	 



	450 SEWER
	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40701 PROCEEDS FROM BORROWING
	 

	40703 SALE OF EQUIP/MATERIAL/SCRAP
	 

	40707 MISCELLANEOUS REV
	 

	40722 MISCELLANEOUS GRANTS
	 

	40732 PRITCHARD/PARK GRANT PROJECT
	 

	40737 REFUNDS/REIMBURSEMENTS
	 

	40739 BEACON MILL PROJECT
	 

	40740 SEWER PROJECT FUND
	 


	00410 SEWER
	41000 SEWER SALES
	 

	41001 SEWER TAPS
	 



	550 WATER PLANT
	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40735 INSURANCE PAID CLAIMS
	 

	40737 REFUNDS/REIMBURSEMENTS
	 




	030 SOLID WASTE
	400 RECREATION
	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40745 OLD VOIDED CHECKS
	 



	900 SOLID WASTE
	00405 INTEREST INCOME
	40500 INTEREST INCOME
	 


	00406 GRANT INCOME
	40601 SC MUNI TRUST
	 


	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40700 SERVICE CHARGES
	 

	40701 PROCEEDS FROM BORROWING
	 

	40703 SALE OF EQUIP/MATERIAL/SCRAP
	 

	40707 MISCELLANEOUS REV
	 

	40729 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND
	 

	40734 COURT ORDERED RESTITUTION
	 

	40735 INSURANCE PAID CLAIMS
	 

	40737 REFUNDS/REIMBURSEMENTS
	 




	040 FIRE DEPARTMENT 1% FUND
	004 REVENUE
	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40707 MISCELLANEOUS REV
	 




	050 YOUTH RECREATION FUND
	400 RECREATION
	00401 INTERGOVENMENTAL REV
	40101 COUNTY ALLOCATION
	 


	00402 LICENSE, PERMITS, & FEES
	40206 ADMISSION
	 

	40207 CONCESSIONS
	 

	40208 REGISTRATION
	 

	40209 SPONSOR FEES
	 

	40213 TOURNAMENT FEE
	 


	00405 INTEREST INCOME
	40500 INTEREST INCOME
	 


	00406 GRANT INCOME
	40600 PARD GRANT
	 


	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40700 SERVICE CHARGES
	 

	40702 DONATIONS
	 

	40703 SALE OF EQUIP/MATERIAL/SCRAP
	 

	40707 MISCELLANEOUS REV
	 

	40709 SKATEBOARD PARK
	 

	40718 FUND RAISING
	 

	40729 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND
	 

	40730 HTAX TRANSFER
	 

	40734 COURT ORDERED RESTITUTION
	 

	40735 INSURANCE PAID CLAIMS
	 

	40737 REFUNDS/REIMBURSEMENTS
	 

	40745 OLD VOIDED CHECKS
	 





	Expense
	010 CITY GENERAL FUND
	100 ADMINISTRATION
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05100 SALARIES
	 

	05101 OVERTIME
	 

	05102 MAYOR/COUNCIL SALARIES
	 

	05103 ANNUAL BONUS
	 

	05104 SOCIAL SECURITY
	 

	05105 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05106 HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05107 WORKERS COMPENSATION
	 

	05108 EMPLOYEE BONDING
	 

	05109 PART TIME EMPLOYEES
	 

	05112 UNEMPLOYEMENT INSURANCE REIMBU
	 

	05114 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE
	 

	05115 CELLPHONE ALLOWANCE
	 

	05810 UNIFORM EXPENSE
	 


	00200 COMMODITIES
	05200 POSTAGE
	 

	05202 OFFICE SUPPLIES
	 

	05209 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
	 

	05210 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05211 SERVICE FEES
	 

	05212 EQUIPMENT PURCHASED
	 

	05214 PRINTING
	 

	05215 BUILDING MAINT.
	 

	05227 BANK RECON ADJUSTMENT
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05300 CELLULAR/WIRELESS PHONES
	 

	05301 TELEPHONES
	 

	05302 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
	 

	05305 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
	 

	05306 ADVERTISING
	 

	05308 OFFICE EQUIP/RENTAL/LEASE
	 

	05310 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05313 UTILITIES PURCH FROM WUD
	 

	05314 UTILITIES PURCH FROM OTHER
	 

	05319 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	 

	05320 MEDICAL PROFESS. SERVICES
	 

	05321  COMPUTER MAINTENANCE
	 

	05323 VEHICLE & PROPERTY INSURANCE
	 

	05328 CUSTOMER REFUNDS
	 

	05336 SC SALES TAX
	 

	05352 JANITORIAL EXPENSE
	 

	05356 TREE BOARD PROJECTS
	 

	05358 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT.
	 

	05362 MUNICIPAL COURT
	 

	05365 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	 

	05368 INTERFUND TRANSFER
	 

	05372 ELECTION EXPENSE
	 

	05378 PRINTING
	 

	05379 LEGAL SERVICES
	 

	05380 DOWNTOWN EVENTS/REPAIRS
	 

	05383 PUBLIC RELATIONS/PROMOTIONS
	 

	05387 HALL ST PROPERTY PURCHASE
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05604 VEHICLES
	 

	05618 SOFTWARE
	 

	05646 C FUNDS - SIDEWALKS
	 

	05647 C FUNDS - ROADWAY RESURFACING
	 



	200 FIRE DEPARTMENT
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05100 SALARIES
	 

	05101 OVERTIME
	 

	05103 ANNUAL BONUS
	 

	05104 SOCIAL SECURITY
	 

	05105 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05106 HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05107 WORKERS COMPENSATION
	 

	05109 PART TIME EMPLOYEES
	 

	05110 VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS BONUS
	 

	05113 PAYROLL ADJUSTMENTS
	 


	00200 COMMODITIES
	05201 FUEL
	 

	05202 OFFICE SUPPLIES
	 

	05203 RADIO/PAGERS
	 

	05204 BUNKER / PPE GEAR
	 

	05205 AWARDS / FLOWERS
	 

	05207 VEHICLE SUPPLIES / PARTS
	 

	05208 UNIFORMS
	 

	05209 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
	 

	05210 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05212 EQUIPMENT PURCHASED
	 

	05218 VOLUNTEER FUND EXPENSE
	 

	05219 FD DRINK FUND EXPENSE
	 

	05221 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
	 

	05222 SUPPLIES
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05300 CELLULAR/WIRELESS PHONES
	 

	05301 TELEPHONES
	 

	05302 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
	 

	05303 RADIO/PAGER REPAIR
	 

	05304 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
	 

	05305 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
	 

	05306 ADVERTISING
	 

	05309 FIRE EXTINGUISHER
	 

	05310 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05313 UTILITIES PURCH FROM WUD
	 

	05314 UTILITIES PURCH FROM OTHER
	 

	05319 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	 

	05320 MEDICAL PROFESS. SERVICES
	 

	05322 CABLE
	 

	05325 SECURITY MONITORING
	 

	05352 JANITORIAL EXPENSE
	 

	05354 FIRE PREVENTION
	 

	05355 BUNKER GEAR REPAIR
	 

	05357 EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEASE
	 

	05358 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT.
	 

	05365 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	 

	05367 ZONING/COMP PLAN
	 

	05369 TRAINING FUND EXPENSE
	 

	05370 DRINK FUND EXPENSE
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05600 SCBA'S
	 

	05604 VEHICLES
	 

	05609 TRAILER FOR CRIBBING
	 

	05620 BRUSH TRUCK
	 

	05623 RADIO/PAGERS
	 

	05624 BUNKER/PPE GEAR
	 

	05636 BUILDING/OTHER IMPROVEMENTS
	 

	05637 OTHER EQUIPMENT
	 


	00700 DEBT SERVICE
	05700 PRINCIPAL PAYMENT
	 

	05701 PAYOFF OF TRUCK BOND
	 

	05702 FD PUMPER TRUCK
	 



	300 POLICE
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05100 SALARIES
	 

	05101 OVERTIME
	 

	05103 ANNUAL BONUS
	 

	05104 SOCIAL SECURITY
	 

	05105 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05106 HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05107 WORKERS COMPENSATION
	 

	05113 PAYROLL ADJUSTMENTS
	 


	00200 COMMODITIES
	05201 FUEL
	 

	05202 OFFICE SUPPLIES
	 

	05206 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR
	 

	05208 UNIFORMS
	 

	05209 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
	 

	05210 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05215 BUILDING MAINT.
	 

	05222 SUPPLIES
	 

	05224 POLICE K9
	 

	05226 DRUG SEIZURE EXPENSE
	 

	05232 MATERIAL/SCRAP RECOVERY
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05300 CELLULAR/WIRELESS PHONES
	 

	05301 TELEPHONES
	 

	05302 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
	 

	05305 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
	 

	05306 ADVERTISING
	 

	05307 PUBLIC RELATIONS
	 

	05310 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05311 RADAR CERTIFICATION
	 

	05312 NARCOTICS BUY MONEY
	 

	05313 UTILITIES PURCH FROM WUD
	 

	05315 POLICE FUND
	 

	05318 SOFTWARE
	 

	05319 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	 

	05320 MEDICAL PROFESS. SERVICES
	 

	05352 JANITORIAL EXPENSE
	 

	05357 EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEASE
	 

	05358 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT.
	 

	05359 EQUIPMENT PURCHASE
	 

	05365 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	 

	05373 JUVENILE DETENTION
	 

	05376 E-TICKET FOR VEHICLES
	 

	05381 DRUG SEIZURE EXPENSE
	 

	05389 DONATIONS EXPENSE
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05601 VEHICLES/EQUIPMENT
	 

	05636 BUILDING/OTHER IMPROVEMENTS
	 

	05637 OTHER EQUIPMENT
	 


	00700 DEBT SERVICE
	05703 PD VEHICLES
	 



	400 RECREATION
	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05637 OTHER EQUIPMENT
	 



	500 CODES
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05100 SALARIES
	 

	05101 OVERTIME
	 

	05103 ANNUAL BONUS
	 

	05104 SOCIAL SECURITY
	 

	05105 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05106 HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05112 UNEMPLOYEMENT INSURANCE REIMBU
	 


	00200 COMMODITIES
	05201 FUEL
	 

	05202 OFFICE SUPPLIES
	 

	05206 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR
	 

	05210 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05214 PRINTING
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05300 CELLULAR/WIRELESS PHONES
	 

	05301 TELEPHONES
	 

	05302 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
	 

	05305 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
	 

	05306 ADVERTISING
	 

	05318 SOFTWARE
	 

	05367 ZONING/COMP PLAN
	 

	05385 CODE SERVICES CONTRACT
	 

	05386 ABATEMENT EXPENSES
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05604 VEHICLES
	 



	600 PUBLIC WORKS
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05100 SALARIES
	 

	05101 OVERTIME
	 

	05103 ANNUAL BONUS
	 

	05104 SOCIAL SECURITY
	 

	05105 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05106 HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05107 WORKERS COMPENSATION
	 

	05113 PAYROLL ADJUSTMENTS
	 


	00200 COMMODITIES
	05201 FUEL
	 

	05202 OFFICE SUPPLIES
	 

	05206 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR
	 

	05208 UNIFORMS
	 

	05209 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
	 

	05210 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05212 EQUIPMENT PURCHASED
	 

	05215 BUILDING MAINT.
	 

	05216 MATERIALS - MAINT.
	 

	05222 SUPPLIES
	 

	05223 TOOLS
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05300 CELLULAR/WIRELESS PHONES
	 

	05301 TELEPHONES
	 

	05302 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
	 

	05305 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
	 

	05306 ADVERTISING
	 

	05310 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05313 UTILITIES PURCH FROM WUD
	 

	05316 RAILROAD PROPERTY RENTAL
	 

	05319 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	 

	05320 MEDICAL PROFESS. SERVICES
	 

	05325 SECURITY MONITORING
	 

	05352 JANITORIAL EXPENSE
	 

	05357 EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEASE
	 

	05358 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT.
	 

	05360 HAND POWER / HYDRAULIC TOOLS
	 

	05363 R.O.W. MAINTENANCE
	 

	05364 MOSQUITO SPRAYING
	 

	05365 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	 

	05374 GARBAGE PERMIT FEES
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05604 VEHICLES
	 

	05607 FIELD/FACILITY  IMPROVEMENTS
	 

	05616 C FUNDS
	 

	05631 LEGION DRIVE
	 

	05636 BUILDING/OTHER IMPROVEMENTS
	 


	00700 DEBT SERVICE
	05708 GARB TRK W/DUMPSTERS PRINCIPAL
	 



	700 NON DEPARTMENTAL
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05113 PAYROLL ADJUSTMENTS
	 


	00200 COMMODITIES
	05209 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
	 

	05210 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05222 SUPPLIES
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05317 TRANSFER TO CHAMBER
	 

	05377 SOLID WASTE TRANSFER
	 

	05384 TRANSFER TO YOUTH RECREATION
	 

	05388 GRANT MATCH
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05602 DEPOT HANDRAIL
	 

	05604 VEHICLES
	 

	05616 C FUNDS
	 

	05617 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
	 

	05622 ARCHITECTURAL STUDY CITY HALL
	 

	05648 2023 PUBLIC SAFETY VEHICLES
	 

	05653 ARC DOWTOWN MASTER PLAN
	 


	00800 OTHER
	05800 GRANTS
	 




	020 UTILITY DEPT. GENERAL FUND
	150 UTILITY ADMINISTRATION
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05100 SALARIES
	 

	05101 OVERTIME
	 

	05103 ANNUAL BONUS
	 

	05104 SOCIAL SECURITY
	 

	05105 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05106 HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05107 WORKERS COMPENSATION
	 

	05108 EMPLOYEE BONDING
	 

	05112 UNEMPLOYEMENT INSURANCE REIMBU
	 

	05114 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE
	 


	00200 COMMODITIES
	05200 POSTAGE
	 

	05201 FUEL
	 

	05202 OFFICE SUPPLIES
	 

	05205 AWARDS / FLOWERS
	 

	05206 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR
	 

	05208 UNIFORMS
	 

	05209 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
	 

	05210 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05211 SERVICE FEES
	 

	05212 EQUIPMENT PURCHASED
	 

	05215 BUILDING MAINT.
	 

	05216 MATERIALS - MAINT.
	 

	05222 SUPPLIES
	 

	05223 TOOLS
	 

	05227 BANK RECON ADJUSTMENT
	 

	05228 BANK ADJUSTMENTS
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05300 CELLULAR/WIRELESS PHONES
	 

	05301 TELEPHONES
	 

	05302 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
	 

	05305 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
	 

	05306 ADVERTISING
	 

	05308 OFFICE EQUIP/RENTAL/LEASE
	 

	05310 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05313 UTILITIES PURCH FROM WUD
	 

	05319 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	 

	05320 MEDICAL PROFESS. SERVICES
	 

	05321  COMPUTER MAINTENANCE
	 

	05323 VEHICLE & PROPERTY INSURANCE
	 

	05324 ALLOCATION TO CITY
	 

	05326 FRANCHISE FEE
	 

	05327 ONLINE UTILITY EXCHANGE
	 

	05328 CUSTOMER REFUNDS
	 

	05336 SC SALES TAX
	 

	05352 JANITORIAL EXPENSE
	 

	05358 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT.
	 

	05360 HAND POWER / HYDRAULIC TOOLS
	 

	05365 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	 

	05366 GARBAGE TRANSFER TO CITY
	 

	05368 INTERFUND TRANSFER
	 

	05375 RECORDS CHECK
	 

	05379 LEGAL SERVICES
	 


	00407 MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER
	40745 OLD VOIDED CHECKS
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05601 VEHICLES/EQUIPMENT
	 

	05603 OPEN
	 

	05604 VEHICLES
	 

	05618 SOFTWARE
	 



	250 ELECTRIC
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05100 SALARIES
	 

	05101 OVERTIME
	 

	05103 ANNUAL BONUS
	 

	05104 SOCIAL SECURITY
	 

	05105 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05106 HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05107 WORKERS COMPENSATION
	 

	05113 PAYROLL ADJUSTMENTS
	 


	00200 COMMODITIES
	05201 FUEL
	 

	05202 OFFICE SUPPLIES
	 

	05206 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR
	 

	05208 UNIFORMS
	 

	05209 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
	 

	05210 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05212 EQUIPMENT PURCHASED
	 

	05216 MATERIALS - MAINT.
	 

	05217 MATERIALS - EXTENSION
	 

	05222 SUPPLIES
	 

	05223 TOOLS
	 

	05229 ELECTRIC DEPRECIATION
	 

	05232 MATERIAL/SCRAP RECOVERY
	 

	05233 METER MAINTENANCE
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05300 CELLULAR/WIRELESS PHONES
	 

	05301 TELEPHONES
	 

	05302 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
	 

	05310 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05313 UTILITIES PURCH FROM WUD
	 

	05319 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	 

	05320 MEDICAL PROFESS. SERVICES
	 

	05336 SC SALES TAX
	 

	05338 ROW LIABILITIES
	 

	05340 ENERGY PURCHASED
	 

	05352 JANITORIAL EXPENSE
	 

	05358 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT.
	 

	05360 HAND POWER / HYDRAULIC TOOLS
	 

	05361 HEAVY DUTY EQUIP RENT/LEASE
	 

	05365 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	 

	05371 CUT LINES
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05604 VEHICLES
	 

	05608 TRANSFORMERS
	 

	05632 RECONDUCTOR TO RAW WATER STATI
	 

	05633 TRANSFORMER INSTALLATION
	 

	05634 PAINT DECORATIVE LIGHTS ON MAI
	 

	05636 BUILDING/OTHER IMPROVEMENTS
	 

	05637 OTHER EQUIPMENT
	 

	05639 WESTMINSTER CROSSING PROJECT
	 

	05642 SUBSTATION REPAIRS
	 



	350 WATER
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05100 SALARIES
	 

	05101 OVERTIME
	 

	05103 ANNUAL BONUS
	 

	05104 SOCIAL SECURITY
	 

	05105 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05106 HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05107 WORKERS COMPENSATION
	 

	05113 PAYROLL ADJUSTMENTS
	 


	00200 COMMODITIES
	05200 POSTAGE
	 

	05201 FUEL
	 

	05202 OFFICE SUPPLIES
	 

	05206 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR
	 

	05208 UNIFORMS
	 

	05209 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
	 

	05210 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05212 EQUIPMENT PURCHASED
	 

	05213 CHEMICALS
	 

	05215 BUILDING MAINT.
	 

	05216 MATERIALS - MAINT.
	 

	05217 MATERIALS - EXTENSION
	 

	05222 SUPPLIES
	 

	05223 TOOLS
	 

	05230 WATER DEPRECIATION
	 

	05232 MATERIAL/SCRAP RECOVERY
	 

	05233 METER MAINTENANCE
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05300 CELLULAR/WIRELESS PHONES
	 

	05301 TELEPHONES
	 

	05302 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
	 

	05305 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
	 

	05306 ADVERTISING
	 

	05310 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05313 UTILITIES PURCH FROM WUD
	 

	05314 UTILITIES PURCH FROM OTHER
	 

	05319 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	 

	05320 MEDICAL PROFESS. SERVICES
	 

	05338 ROW LIABILITIES
	 

	05339 PURCHASED WATER
	 

	05341 ASPHALT/PAVING
	 

	05342 H2O QUALITY REPORT
	 

	05343 WATER SAMPLING
	 

	05344 DHEC/INTERAL FEES
	 

	05345 LAB EXPENSE
	 

	05346 PUMP STATION RAW WATER
	 

	05347 WASTE HANDLING
	 

	05348 GENERATOR
	 

	05349 SCADA MAINTENANCE
	 

	05350 PUMP STATION MAINT/REPAIR
	 

	05351 ELEVATED TANK MAINT.
	 

	05352 JANITORIAL EXPENSE
	 

	05353 HYDRANT MAINTENANCE
	 

	05358 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT.
	 

	05360 HAND POWER / HYDRAULIC TOOLS
	 

	05361 HEAVY DUTY EQUIP RENT/LEASE
	 

	05365 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	 

	05371 CUT LINES
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05604 VEHICLES
	 

	05605 HWY 76 WATER LINE MATCH
	 

	05606 COBB BRIDGE RD WATER LINE
	 

	05636 BUILDING/OTHER IMPROVEMENTS
	 

	05637 OTHER EQUIPMENT
	 

	05640 WATER LINE LONG CRK HWY/US 76
	 

	05649 RIA GRANT EXPENSE
	 

	05651 LOCAL RIA MATCH EXPENSE
	 


	00700 DEBT SERVICE
	05704 2005 WATER PROJECT
	 

	05706 2014 UTILITY REV BOND PRINCIPA
	 

	05710 2015 UTILITY REV BOND INTEREST
	 

	05711 2014 UTILITY BOND REV INTEREST
	 

	05716 CONSERFUND LOAN
	 



	450 SEWER
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05100 SALARIES
	 

	05101 OVERTIME
	 

	05103 ANNUAL BONUS
	 

	05104 SOCIAL SECURITY
	 

	05105 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05106 HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05107 WORKERS COMPENSATION
	 

	05113 PAYROLL ADJUSTMENTS
	 


	00200 COMMODITIES
	05201 FUEL
	 

	05202 OFFICE SUPPLIES
	 

	05203 RADIO/PAGERS
	 

	05206 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR
	 

	05208 UNIFORMS
	 

	05209 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
	 

	05210 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05212 EQUIPMENT PURCHASED
	 

	05216 MATERIALS - MAINT.
	 

	05222 SUPPLIES
	 

	05223 TOOLS
	 

	05231 SEWER DEPRECIATION
	 

	05232 MATERIAL/SCRAP RECOVERY
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05300 CELLULAR/WIRELESS PHONES
	 

	05301 TELEPHONES
	 

	05302 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
	 

	05310 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05313 UTILITIES PURCH FROM WUD
	 

	05319 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	 

	05320 MEDICAL PROFESS. SERVICES
	 

	05329 OCONEE COUNTY SEWER BILL
	 

	05341 ASPHALT/PAVING
	 

	05352 JANITORIAL EXPENSE
	 

	05357 EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEASE
	 

	05358 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT.
	 

	05360 HAND POWER / HYDRAULIC TOOLS
	 

	05365 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05604 VEHICLES
	 

	05610 HWY 183 SEWER RE-ROUTE
	 

	05611 MIMOSA SEWER REPLACEMENT
	 

	05612 FLOW METERS
	 

	05613 HAMPTON STREET SEWER MATCH
	 

	05621 BACKHOE PURCHASE
	 

	05625 PRITCHARD/PARK AVE REHAB
	 

	05626 SEWER RIGHT-A-WAY CLEARING
	 

	05637 OTHER EQUIPMENT
	 

	05641 BEACON MILL PROJECT
	 



	550 WATER PLANT
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05100 SALARIES
	 

	05101 OVERTIME
	 

	05103 ANNUAL BONUS
	 

	05104 SOCIAL SECURITY
	 

	05105 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05106 HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05107 WORKERS COMPENSATION
	 

	05109 PART TIME EMPLOYEES
	 


	00200 COMMODITIES
	05200 POSTAGE
	 

	05201 FUEL
	 

	05202 OFFICE SUPPLIES
	 

	05206 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR
	 

	05208 UNIFORMS
	 

	05209 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
	 

	05210 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05213 CHEMICALS
	 

	05215 BUILDING MAINT.
	 

	05222 SUPPLIES
	 

	05232 MATERIAL/SCRAP RECOVERY
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05300 CELLULAR/WIRELESS PHONES
	 

	05301 TELEPHONES
	 

	05302 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
	 

	05305 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
	 

	05306 ADVERTISING
	 

	05313 UTILITIES PURCH FROM WUD
	 

	05314 UTILITIES PURCH FROM OTHER
	 

	05319 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	 

	05320 MEDICAL PROFESS. SERVICES
	 

	05342 H2O QUALITY REPORT
	 

	05343 WATER SAMPLING
	 

	05344 DHEC/INTERAL FEES
	 

	05345 LAB EXPENSE
	 

	05347 WASTE HANDLING
	 

	05348 GENERATOR
	 

	05349 SCADA MAINTENANCE
	 

	05350 PUMP STATION MAINT/REPAIR
	 

	05352 JANITORIAL EXPENSE
	 

	05358 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT.
	 

	05365 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	 

	05371 CUT LINES
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05627 DEMOLITION OF RAMSEY CREEK PUM
	 

	05636 BUILDING/OTHER IMPROVEMENTS
	 

	05637 OTHER EQUIPMENT
	 



	650 NON DEPARTMENTAL
	00700 DEBT SERVICE
	05706 2014 UTILITY REV BOND PRINCIPA
	 

	05707 2015 UTILITY REV BOND PRINCIPA
	 

	05710 2015 UTILITY REV BOND INTEREST
	 

	05711 2014 UTILITY BOND REV INTEREST
	 

	05715 2022 LEASE/PURCHASE
	 

	05717 2023 LEASE/PURCHASE
	 


	00800 OTHER
	05853 CONTINGENCY APPROPRIATION
	 



	700 NON DEPARTMENTAL
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05113 PAYROLL ADJUSTMENTS
	 

	05156 CONTINGENCY
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05377 SOLID WASTE TRANSFER
	 

	05388 GRANT MATCH
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05604 VEHICLES
	 

	05636 BUILDING/OTHER IMPROVEMENTS
	 

	05637 OTHER EQUIPMENT
	 


	00800 OTHER
	05801 TRANSFER TO CITY GF
	 

	05852 RESERVED - FUTURE IMPROVEMENTS
	 

	05853 CONTINGENCY APPROPRIATION
	 




	030 SOLID WASTE
	005 EXPENSE
	00515 EXPENSE
	05851 INTERFUND TRANSFER
	 



	900 SOLID WASTE
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05100 SALARIES
	 

	05101 OVERTIME
	 

	05103 ANNUAL BONUS
	 

	05104 SOCIAL SECURITY
	 

	05105 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05106 HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05107 WORKERS COMPENSATION
	 

	05109 PART TIME EMPLOYEES
	 

	05112 UNEMPLOYEMENT INSURANCE REIMBU
	 


	00200 COMMODITIES
	05201 FUEL
	 

	05202 OFFICE SUPPLIES
	 

	05206 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR
	 

	05208 UNIFORMS
	 

	05209 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
	 

	05210 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05211 SERVICE FEES
	 

	05212 EQUIPMENT PURCHASED
	 

	05215 BUILDING MAINT.
	 

	05216 MATERIALS - MAINT.
	 

	05221 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
	 

	05222 SUPPLIES
	 

	05223 TOOLS
	 

	05225 TRASH CAN/DUMP REPLAC/PARTS
	 

	05232 MATERIAL/SCRAP RECOVERY
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05300 CELLULAR/WIRELESS PHONES
	 

	05301 TELEPHONES
	 

	05302 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
	 

	05306 ADVERTISING
	 

	05310 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05313 UTILITIES PURCH FROM WUD
	 

	05319 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	 

	05320 MEDICAL PROFESS. SERVICES
	 

	05323 VEHICLE & PROPERTY INSURANCE
	 

	05352 JANITORIAL EXPENSE
	 

	05357 EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEASE
	 

	05358 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT.
	 

	05360 HAND POWER / HYDRAULIC TOOLS
	 

	05361 HEAVY DUTY EQUIP RENT/LEASE
	 

	05364 MOSQUITO SPRAYING
	 

	05365 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	 

	05374 GARBAGE PERMIT FEES
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05601 VEHICLES/EQUIPMENT
	 

	05628 KNUCKLE BOOM TRUCK
	 

	05635 TRAILER PURCHASE
	 

	05637 OTHER EQUIPMENT
	 


	00700 DEBT SERVICE
	05708 GARB TRK W/DUMPSTERS PRINCIPAL
	 

	05709 KNUCKLE BOOM PAYMENT PRINCIPAL
	 

	05712 GARB TRK W/DUMPSTERS INTEREST
	 

	05713 KNUCKLE BOOM PAYMENT INTEREST
	 

	05714 INTEREST EXPENSE
	 




	040 FIRE DEPARTMENT 1% FUND
	005 EXPENSE
	00200 COMMODITIES
	05227 BANK RECON ADJUSTMENT
	 


	00515 EXPENSE
	05310 MISCELLANEOUS
	 




	050 YOUTH RECREATION FUND
	400 RECREATION
	00100 PERSONAL SERVICES
	05100 SALARIES
	 

	05103 ANNUAL BONUS
	 

	05104 SOCIAL SECURITY
	 

	05105 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05106 HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS
	 

	05107 WORKERS COMPENSATION
	 

	05109 PART TIME EMPLOYEES
	 


	00200 COMMODITIES
	05201 FUEL
	 

	05202 OFFICE SUPPLIES
	 

	05206 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR
	 

	05208 UNIFORMS
	 

	05209 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
	 

	05210 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05211 SERVICE FEES
	 

	05212 EQUIPMENT PURCHASED
	 

	05227 BANK RECON ADJUSTMENT
	 


	00300 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	05300 CELLULAR/WIRELESS PHONES
	 

	05301 TELEPHONES
	 

	05305 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
	 

	05306 ADVERTISING
	 

	05310 MISCELLANEOUS
	 

	05313 UTILITIES PURCH FROM WUD
	 

	05314 UTILITIES PURCH FROM OTHER
	 

	05320 MEDICAL PROFESS. SERVICES
	 

	05323 VEHICLE & PROPERTY INSURANCE
	 

	05328 CUSTOMER REFUNDS
	 

	05330 TROPHY AWARDS
	 

	05331 INSURANCE EXPENSE
	 

	05332 OFFICIALS EXPENSE
	 

	05333 SPORTS/EQUIP SUPPLIES
	 

	05334 GROUNDS EXPENSE
	 

	05335 TOURNAMENT EXPENSE
	 

	05337 CONCESSIONS
	 

	05357 EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEASE
	 

	05365 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	 

	05389 DONATIONS EXPENSE
	 


	00600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
	05604 VEHICLES
	 

	05607 FIELD/FACILITY  IMPROVEMENTS
	 

	05617 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
	 

	05637 OTHER EQUIPMENT
	 

	05644 COUNTY ALLOCATION EXPENSE
	 

	05645 PARD GRANT EXPENSE
	 










